Questions and Responses

Attachment 01 to Amendment 05 

SIR DTFA01-99-R-00028


Sections C.1.0, C.4.1, C.4.1.1, Appendix 3 and Attachment J-1

Question #1 – Each of these sections and Appendix 3, lead a successful bidder to believe that they will “provide staffing for each FCT in accordance with their FAA approved staffing plan”.  The SIR is silent on the awarding of “sole source contracts” within the area being bid.  A bidder’s costs are spread out over each of the sites in a particular area.  If sole source locations were never intended to be awarded to the successful bidder of a particular area, how can a bidder be expected to develop a pricing strategy that allows for the correct distribution of costs?  Is it the FAA’s intent to award sole source contracts within a particular area?  If the answer is yes, will the successful bidder be allowed to adjust their quoted pricing?

Response #1 – This question will be addressed at a later date.

Section C.4.1.1 – Provision of ATC Services

Question #1 – The 3rd sentence in this paragraph states:  “Except for emergencies, any modifications to this (staffing) plan must be approved by the FAA Contracting Officer prior to implementation”.  In determining a staffing plan to be bid for each FCT tower, a non-incumbent is at a distinct disadvantage since it cannot know all the nuances related to a particular tower even though it had the opportunity to survey various sources about the particular tower.  With this background, if successful in being awarded a contract, can the contractor adjust the schedule to more appropriately match traffic to ATC coverage as long as the adjusted hours match the hours bid and specified in the legend depicted on the approved staffing plan?

Response #1 – Yes, the Contractor can adjust schedules but not the number of FTE’s or the number of employees without approval of the Contracting Officer.    

Section C.4.1.4 – Provision of ATC Services and Section C.5.3 – Testing, Certification and Training

Question #1 – FAA Order 7210.54, FCT Operation and Administration and the paragraphs listed above are mute on the incumbent contractor’s phase-out responsibilities as they relate to classroom training.  Who will provide classroom training, the FAA or the incumbent contractor?

Response #1 – Neither.  Classroom training is the responsibility of the successor contractor.

Question #2 – FAA Order 7210.54, Paragraph 13, Conversions and New Starts, addresses Hub facility responsibilities and contractor responsibilities for OJT.  Who has what responsibility in relation to supplying training materials and the provision/retention of documents?

Response #2 – FAA Order 7210.54, paragraph 13 addresses activities for conversions and new starts.  For existing contract towers, local area knowledge material would be provided by the incumbent Contractor.

Question #3 – When will a new contractor be provided a copy of the incumbent contractor’s Phase-out plan?

Response #3 – Phase-out plans are the property of the Contractor.  The FAA approves the plan, the Contractor executes the approved plans.  Section C, Paragraph C.4.14 is germane.

Section C.4.8 – Quality Assurance Program and Section C.4.13.3 - Reports

Question #1 - During the bidder’s conference, a question was raised concerning the requirement for an “internal Facility evaluation”.  FAA Order 7110.1, Air Traffic Evaluations, no longer requires internal evaluations.  Will this requirement be deleted from the FCT contract?

Response #1 – Contractor internal full-facility evaluations are required.

Section C.4.10 – Drug Testing Program

Question #1 – Previously submitted questions and discussions indicated that a new contractor would be relieved from the requirement to test incumbent contract employees and retiring FAA employees covered by FAA’s random drug testing provisions. Similar to FAA security requirements that are being waived.  DOT regulations require “Periodic Testing” for a new employer until one year after the implementation of their drug program.  The cost and redundancy of this requirement appears to be an excessive requirement, as long as a new contractor’s Random Drug Testing Program is in place upon contract award.  Will the FAA give any relief to the requirement of periodic testing?

Response #1 – The FAA will consider waivers to drug testing requirements for former FAA and incumbent controllers on a case-by-case basis.

Section C, Appendix 3 – Site Specific Information

Question #1 – We understand that there are 16 tower locations listed in this Appendix that will not initially be part of the FCT Program and, therefore, will not be included in the contract awards.  Please identify the 16 locations that are not to be included.  Should the prices for these sites be marked “Not Applicable” or should a price be provided?  If a price is to be provided, please provide the anticipated date for inclusion in the program.

Response #1 – See Section J of the SIR amendment for further information on additional FCT locations.

Question #2 – Please clarify the hours of operation and seasonality for the following towers:  0429, Phoenix (Williams Gateway) – does not reflect the current hours of operations and 0502, Bethel AK – please confirm the seasonal split.

Response #2 – The hours of operation for site 0429 are 0600 – 2100.  The hours of operation and seasonal split for site 0502 are 0700 – 2200 from April 1st through October 31st and 0700 – 2000 from November 1st through March 30th.

Clause F.8 – Holidays

Question #1 – A number of DOL wage determinations recently supplied by the FAA indicate that “Good Friday” is a recognized holiday.  In at least one State, they only recognize a minimum of eight holidays, eliminating Martin Luther King’s Birthday and Columbus Day.  Which is the controlling document, the SIR or the DOL wage determination as it relates to holidays? 

Response #1 – This clause refers to federally-recognized holidays and states that overtime pay “may” be required.  State-specific holidays, as addressed in DOL Wage Determinations, shall be recognized and the terms shall apply.  Working, on the federal holidays specified in Clause F.8, will entitle you to overtime.

Clause H.7 – Report To Work
Question #1 – Is the HUB Facility the back-up coordination point if the Regional Point of Contact is not available to coordinate the release of personnel in the event of hazardous geological weather conditions?

Response #1 – See Section C, Paragraph C.5.1 – Contact FAA Facility
Clause H.33 – Fair Labor Standards Act and Service Contract Act – Price Adjustment

Question #1 – In the FAA’s “Response to Questions from the Pre-Proposal Conference”, the response provided to Section L.20, Question #2 states that “Clause H.33 will be deleted.  The FAA will not make wage determination adjustments”.  In light of the discussions at the one-on-one conferences, does the FAA still intend to delete Clause H.33?

Response #1 –Wage determination adjustments, as they pertain to the Service Contract Act, are not addressed under the Fair Labor Standards Act.  The adjustments referenced under the aforementioned apply to adjustments needed to bring employees up to the national minimum wage rate.  The Fair Labor Standards Act is included under this requirement since it addresses overtime provisions, as referenced under the Service Contract Act. Therefore, the clause has been deleted from Section H of the SIR and incorporated by reference in Section I.

Clause H.36 – Aviation Operations Insurance

Question #1 – When and where will the Contractor be able to review what is contained in the “operational liability insurance” policy, so that we may understand the coverage and any exceptions, and price our bid accordingly?

Response #1 – No date can be given at this time as to when the insurance policy will be available for review.

Question #2 – Does the FAA assume operational liability for costs above the $10M level?

Response #2 – Yes, the Government is self-insured.

Section J, Attachment 4

Question #1 – Can data be presented in a different format (i.e., listed vertically instead of horizontally) as long as all required data is included?  

Response #1 – No.  The format as stated in Section J, Attachment 4 shall be adhered to.

Section L.3 – Projected Milestone Schedule

Question #1 – In light of the allowable question period and consequent time required to answer and disseminate responses, will the FAA delay the proposal due date again?  If so, is it anticipated that the contract award date will also be delayed?  Also, is it possible to obtain a new estimate of the time during which Oral Presentations will be scheduled?

Response #1 – Clause L.3 is revised to include an updated projected milestone schedule.

Section L.15.3.1 – Binding and Labeling

Question #1 – Since part of the proposal may become part of the contract, it would seem advisable that such items contain the Offeror’s name.  Will you consider lifting the restriction on the Offeror’s company name appearing only on the table of contents page?

Response #1 – No.  The section shall remain unchanged.

Question #2 – Does the direction in Paragraph L.15.3.1 which stipulates that company name and address shall not appear in the text of the proposal apply to the Past Performance section?  It would be difficult to request references and assessment of performance without identifying the name of the contractor.  

Response #2 – Yes, the direction in paragraph L.15.3.1 does apply to the Past Performance section.  Information shall not appear on any page other than the Table of Contents.  The Table of Contents contains sufficient information to identify and request information concerning Past Performance.

Question #3 – Please clarify where company identification can appear.  Clearly, company identification is permitted in Tables of Contents.  We assume that it is also permitted on Binder Covers, Title Sheets and Briefing Charts.  

Response #3 – Identification information shall only appear on the Table of Contents and binder cover, in accordance with L.15.3.1.  Identification on the briefing charts is not permitted.

Question #4 – This section states that “the name of the Offeror shall be included only on the Table of Contents page of each volume.  All other pages shall not contain any information that identifies the Offeror, such as company name, address or logo”.  Please reconcile this statement with the following:

L.18.1.3:  The package shall also include the list of presenters depicting name, company, position and the subject each will be responsible for

L.18.3.7:  Presenters should have a slide with their introductory information, and the presenter’s introduction of him/herself by name, position and company affiliation.

H.21:  The contractor shall adhere to the following plans as submitted in the technical proposal…..

H.44:  The contractor’s proposal…….prepared in response to Screening Information Request (SIR) DTFA01-99-R-00028, is hereby incorporated by reference into this contract…..

It would seem advisable to be able to include the company names in plans to which we are to be held accountable by the FAA.

Response #4 – To ensure impartiality of all information, written submissions will remain sanitized and, therefore, unchanged.  During the Oral Presentation, we will be able to correlate the company and their briefing charts.  Therefore, the information contained within Section L.15.3.1 shall remain unchanged.

Section L.15.2 – Proposal Organization

Question #1 – Volume I is to be submitted in 3 copies.  However, Section D, Minimum Qualifications Brief, requires 5 copies on submission.  Is this correct?  If so, do you want the 5 copies of Section D in a separate binder?

Response #1 – Section E refers to the Minimum Qualifications Brief.  Each Offeror is required to submit an original and two (2) copies of Volume I.  Within each binder of Volume I, an original and five (5) copies of the Minimum Qualifications Brief shall be submitted.  The total requirements for the Minimum Qualifications Brief shall include three (3) originals and fifteen (15) copies.

Question #2 – The required number of copies for this section is “Original + 5 copies”.  The requirement for the remainder of Volume I is “Original + 2 copies”.  How are we to package the additional 3 copies?

Response #2 – Refer to the response to question #1 of this section.

Section L.15.3.3.4 – Page Size, Typing, Spacing, Page Numbering and Maximum Page Limits
Question #1 – Regarding the 75-page limit placed on Volume II – Offerors must submit 6 technical implementation plans requiring detail since they become plans to which they must adhere contractually.  Offerors must also submit an oral presentation briefing package that must cover 4 complicated areas sufficiently to be considered in the evaluation of the proposal.  It is difficult to be sufficiently responsive to both of these requirements within the confines of 75 pages.  Will you consider excluding the oral briefing package from the page limitation?

Response #1 – No.  The oral presentation briefing package shall not be excluded from the 75-page limit placed on Volume II.  The page limitation is sufficient to cover the requirements of the SIR.  Please note in Section L.18.3.8 that the briefing charts should highlight information in the briefing. 

Question #2 – Volume II, Technical Proposal.  Section C requires submission of all charts to be utilized in our Oral Presentation.  Previous clarifications have indicated that this section is subject to the page limitation for Volume II.  


a.  Considering this section is not evaluated, why is it subject to the page limitation?


b.  If it will remain subject to the page limitation of the Volume, is it possible to change the requirements to ask for a description of the oral presentation in an abbreviated form?


c.  If it is not subject to the restriction, is it possible to change the submittal instructions to read: “Section B is the only section subject to the page restriction of this Volume?”

Response #2 – See the response to the previous question.

Question #3 – It seems necessary to revisit Section L.15.3.3 establishing a 75-page limit on Volume II, excluding the Staffing Plans, but including the Oral Presentation Briefing Package, as Response to Question 6, L.15 which reaffirms that the 75-page limit includes the briefing charts for the Oral Presentation.  To comply with the FAA’s requirement that we be detailed in the presentation of our plans, that we be sufficiently thorough in addressing the four oral presentation areas, and that we provide sufficient information on our charts to enable them to be used to evaluate, the oral presentation would seem to require more than 75 pages.  Six detailed implementation plans alone would seem to require close to, if not all of, that many pages.  Will the FAA consider excluding the oral briefing charts from the 75-page limit imposed on Volume II?

Response #3 – No.  See the response to question #1 of this section.

Section L.16.1.5 – Section E – Minimum Qualifications Brief

Question #1 – Are we permitted to use our company name in the qualifications brief (Volume I will already have our name throughout the submittals: SF33, Section K, etc.)?

Response #1 – No.  Section L.15.3.1 states that the name of the offeror shall only be included on the “Table of Contents” page of each volume.  All other pages shall not contain any information which identifies the offeror, such as company name, address or logo.

Section L.18.1.1 – Staffing Plans and Schedules

Problem for Questions 1 and 2:  Several site staffing plans work out where a part-time controller is needed.  It is possible to hire a part-time controller in some locations and not possible in others due to availability and/or preference by available customers.

Question #1 – Can the Government require that in bids where part-time controllers are proposed, the offeror must submit a name and an agreement by that individual to work part-time?  At sites not currently in the program, there is equal risk to all bidders as there is no experience base for attempting to hire part-time controllers.

Response #1 –  No.

Question #2 – Would the Government consider having the incumbent contractors provide a list of their towers where part-time controllers are or are not available for hiring?  If a bidder then bids a part-time or rounds down on staffing, the Government could assess the risk.

Response #2 – No.

Question #3 – The answer to the question concerning the development of staffing plans indicated “the FAA will accept starting 15 minutes prior to opening time for that controller assigned to open the tower”.  This is a requirement at all facilities in order that tower operations begin at the scheduled opening time.  A controller must therefore be scheduled and paid for this time.  Can the Government require that this pre-duty time be accounted for in the staffing schedules?

Response #3 – All time worked should be reflected in the staffing plan.

Question #4 – Mandatory staffing of six people has been established for Tupelo, MS tower.  Will FAA include the mandatory staffing of six people for the Tupelo, MS tower?

Response #4 – The SIR will not mandate a requirement for six (6) controllers at Tupelo, MS.

Section L.18.1.3 – Oral Presentation – Briefing Package

Question #1 – Since the briefing charts will not be evaluated as written material, we request that they be excluded from the 75-page limit.

Response #1  - The briefing charts shall not be excluded from the 75-page limit.  

Section L.18.2.2 Oral Presentation – Briefing and L.18.3.5 Oral Presentations – General Information

Question #1 – The SIR states that “it is anticipated that the Oral Presentation will not exceed a four hour time period” and the “presentation portion will be limited to 2 hours.”  It further states “At the conclusion of the briefing or time limit, whichever occurs first, the government will ask questions of the briefer.  The questions and answers will not count against the time limit.”  Which time limit is being addressed: the four or two-hour time limit?

Response #1 – In this instance, the time limit being addressed is the four-hour time limit.

Question #2 – The estimated percentage of time allotted in L.18.2.2 doesn’t coincide with the two-hour time limitation for the presentation.  Which is correct?

Response #2 – The percentages are estimates only and provided to give the Contractor an idea of the percentage of time spent on the subject matter.  The information does not conflict with the two-hour time limit.  

Question #3 – What is the time limit for the situational problem for preparation, questions and answers?

Response #3 – It is estimated that 20% of the 4-hour time limit could be spent on the situational problem.  However, there is no finite time limit for the situational problem.

Section L.20 – Volume IV - Price Proposal - Preparation Instructions

Question #1 – FAA’s response to Section L, Question 2 states that “as previously discussed, Clause H.33 will be deleted.  FAA will not make wage determination adjustments”.  We were told in our one-on-one discussion that the ability to request equitable adjustments would be accommodated i.e. wage determinations.  If Clause H.33 is removed, what mechanism to request equitable adjustments will be used?

Historical wage determination information supplied by the FAA indicates a significant number of DOL wage determinations increases were in the 10% to 16% range.  There is no guarantee that future DOL wage determinations will not exceed the historical norms provided.  The new wage concessions FAA recently granted NATCA represented controllers, may have a direct impact on future wage determinations under the FCT Program.  The ability to have equitable adjustments that were discussed during our one-on-one conference, are critical, considering these possible impacts.

Response #1 – The amendment addresses wage adjustments in revised Clause H.34, “Wage Determinations”.

Section L.20.3.3.2.5

Question #1 – The proposals are not supposed to include any reference to the company name, address, etc.  In Volume IV, certain submittals will need to include our names.  For example, our banks have provided us with a letter (addressed to our company) which confirms our financial strength and available credit line.  They are not willing to give a generic letter (Company “A” has a line of credit totaling __ million dollars).  Is it permissible to include our company name on letters from lending institutions and other pertinent forms in this Volume? Or is this restriction not applicable to this volume?

Response #1 – Volume I, in lieu of Volume IV, is the correct volume for including letters from lending institutions as they pertain to lines of credit.  Any outside documentation, which already includes the company name, may be submitted.  The Government will sanitize such documents, accordingly.

Insurance

Question #1 – Considering the FAA is purchasing liability insurance for contractors, is it possible to change the Save and Hold Harmless language to have contractors Save and Hold the FAA harmless up to the limits of the FAA supplied insurance?

Response #1 – No.  The FAA is not modifying the Save and Hold Harmless language.  The Government is a self-insured entity.

Wage Determinations (WD)

Question #1 - FAA’s August 28th Public Announcement advised potential bidders that historical WD data and the latest actual DOL WD’s are available.  Data for Opa Locka and Melbourne FL in Area 2 was missing in the data we were supplied.  When can we expect WD information on these two locations?

Response #1 – Wage determination information for these two sites are included in revised Attachment J-2.

Question #2 – Historical WD data included information on FCT locations not listed in the SIR.  Does the FAA intend to add these sites to the SIR?

Response #2 – The FAA intends to include those sites that are listed in Section B of the SIR.  The FAA is under no obligation to award any sites not listed within Section B.

Other

Question #1 – Will all 22 additional locations “waiting to be inducted” actually be transitioned to the current FCT contractor prior to the start of the new FCT contracts?

Response #1 – Yes.
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